US Route 1
The content of this document is a chapter from the book "U.S. One: Maine to Florida" <INSERT CITATION HERE>. This book was published in 1938 by the Federal Writers' Project. Due to the book's age and its copyright not having been renewed, it is in the public domain. Excerpts from this book or other public domain books are useful to illustrate advanced concepts in Microsoft Word without having to write an entire document's worth of sample text from scratch. There have been minor changes made to the text to illustrate Word features.
Included are some of the original photograph illustrations from the book. This photographs are also now in the public domain:
[bookmark: _GoBack]<INSERT BULLETED LIST AS SHOWN IN INSTRUCTIONS>
Until the construction of Interstate 95, US 1 was the main route along the Atlantic coast of the United States from Maine to Florida <INSERT CROSS-REFERENCE HERE>. While it now has largely been superseded for through traffic, US 1 remains an important road in many areas and is still the main route through the Florida Keys.<INSERT Key West FOOTNOTE HERE> It is also one of the longer routes in the system of United States Numbered Highways, comprising 2,369 miles of the total 157,724 miles in the system:

While many of the attractions listed in "U.S. One" no longer exist, the book remains an interesting read to understand what travel was like during the Great Depression era.
State 4A, an extension of US 1 known as the Oversea Highway, is the only route running down over the curving chain of coral islands at the southern end of Florida. For a few miles south of Miami it runs through resort suburbs of that city; it then traverses the yellow-green savannas whose flatness is broken only by occasional hammocks and clumps of mangrove. Herons and cranes feed in the drainage ditch beside the highway and far overhead float a few hawks. The route leaves the mainland, running for more than 100 miles across small keys, which, except in two places, are tied together by bridges. These breaks will eventually be spanned.
The bridges are so long that at times it seems as though the route were running over the sea itself; to the right is an arm of the Gulf of Mexico, to the left is the Atlantic Ocean. In the clear shallow waters beneath the bridges are seen spreading sea fans and fish among them the blue mass of the tentacled man-of-war and on the horizon the emerald dots of scattered islands.
Mainland
[image: ]SOUTH MIAMI, 9.8 miles (1,160 estimated population), formerly called Larkins for an early storekeeper, was given its present name the day after he died. Large packing houses, characteristic of many in this vicinity, handle tomatoes, truck crops, and citrus. South of the city limits are abandoned oolitic rockpits, now filled with clear greenish-blue water and often used as swimming pools by small fry.
In KENDAL, 11.5 miles (13’ altitude, 300 estimated population), a small citrus-growing settlement, are the COUNTY HOME and COUNTY HOSPITAL.
PERRINE, 17 miles (13’ altitude, 800 population), was named for Dr. Henry Perrine, a botanist who obtained a Government grant in 1835 for experimentation with tropical plants. Dr. Perrine introduced the sisal (Agave rigida), popularly miscalled the "century plant," which now has spread over south Florida.
PETERS, 18 miles (13’ altitude, 175 estimated population), is named for Tom Peters, a pioneer tomato grower, who in pre-railroad days ran a mule tramline to Cutler, from which he shipped his produce north by boat.

At 20 miles is the junction with Mainland Drive. Right on this paved road to the TROPICAL MONKEY JUNGLE. Java monkeys run wild in a gumbo-limbo hammock; it is the visitors who are caged. Monkeys, even though eager for peanuts, will not enter the screen-guarded pathways for fear of being trapped. The tribe unites, when new monkeys are added to the colony, and drives them away. Some varieties of monkeys and apes are kept in cages.
GOULDS, 22 miles (12’ altitude, 326 population), is at the northern end of an area with large citrus groves.
PRINCETON, 24 miles (12’ altitude, 255 population), was originally called Modello. Here several Princeton graduates started a lumber mill in 1905, and put up a huge sign, Princeton. Although repeatedly re-moved, the sign always reappeared, and the F.E.C. Ry. finally adopted the name.
At 26 miles is the junction with Newton Road. Left on this road to FENNELL ORCHID JUNGLE, 0.5 miles (open daily during winter blooming season, admission 25 cents; guides), a commercial orchid nursery. Hundreds of orchids, native and exotic, have been acclimated on hammock trees. Cattleya guatemalensis, a beautiful orchid blooming high in live-oaks, is grown in quantities.
HOMESTEAD, 30.2 miles (9’ altitude, 2,319 population), is the commercial center of an agricultural area specializing in winter fruit growing.
With the coming of the railroad in 1904, Homestead, so named because its original settlers were homesteaders, developed rapidly from a primitive backwoods town into a modern community. A large tract north of the town is being planted (1938) with 25,000 mahogany trees.
JOHNSTON'S PALM LODGE (free), Avocado Road and Krome Ave., owned by Col. H. west Johnston, the Burbank of South Florida, contains one of the largest collections of tropical plants and trees in the country. There are 267 different kinds of jellies and marmalades on sale.
The SUBTROPICAL EXPERIMENT STATION, on Waldin Drive, conducts experiments in the raising of citrus fruits, avocados, and winter vegetables under subtropical conditions.
A large AVOCADO GROVE is on Waldin Drive. The Homestead Avocado Exchange has shipped about 2,000 carloads of the product in one season.
COCOLOBO CAY CLUB, on an island in Biscayne Bay opposite Homestead, is owned by a group of wealthy anglers. It was one of the haunts of Black Caesar, the pirate.
FLORIDA CITY, 31.7 miles (10’ altitude, 452 population), where royal palms grow in rows on the main street, was incorporated in 1913. It was first called Detroit, but the name was changed when the post office department objected.
Right from Florida City on State 205 to ED'S PLACE (free), 1miles, containing monolithic garden furniture and large novelties carved by its owner from local oolite. This granular variety of limestone is composed of small round concretions and resembles fish roe in appearance.
At 14 miles is ROYAL PALM STATE PARK (free), where a 4,000-acre tract of dense hammock is preserved in its native state by Florida's women's clubs. It is within the borders of the proposed Everglades National Park. The 260 varieties of native plant life include tall palms, great oaks many of which harbor orchids and 31 varieties of ferns, some 27 ft. high. Here the strangler fig and morning glory grow to giant size. Here live multicolored butterflies, including the sleeping Heliconia. The area is a bird sanctuary; the giant ibis and pink flamingo live among 150 other species of birds.
PARADISE KEY, within the park, consists of 300 acres of jungle botanically similar to those of the West Indies. Here are native royal palms more than 100 feet tall; rare orchids, air plants, vines, and water plants of many kinds, including the Egyptian lotus.
ROYAL PALM LODGE (meals and rooms; picnic grounds free) is open the year around.
Proceeding west through the park is a road, built along one of the many drainage canals. The banks are covered for nearly 35 miles with buttonwood trees, gallberry and elderberry bushes. Beyond are thick mangrove islands and cypress hammocks; left are small patches of cornfield and road construction-camp shacks.
In some places are great expanses of dead mangrove trees, their trunks twisted and denuded of foliage. These are reminders of the devastating hurricane that visited this region September 3, 1935.
Cars can follow the road past BEAR LAKE, a desolate body of water about a mile wide and nearly two and a half miles long. This lake is full of many kinds of fishes, whose fins are seen cutting the surface of the water early in the morning and in the late afternoon.
The beautiful flamingo formerly existed here in such large numbers that it was killed, picked, and salted down as food, chiefly for use on sailing ships. Those remaining in the park are now given protection.
Cranes, herons, raccoons, skunks, otters, brown bears, and wildcats all inhabit the lake area, secure in their isolation.
Great alligators are occasionally visible, their snouts barely above the water. They are also seen sunning themselves on muddy banks.
South of Florida City the highway runs for 10 miles through desolate swamps where dense mangrove patches stretch claw-like roots into the water, gathering sediment that in time will form new land.
Florida Keys
At 43.5 miles the road slopes toward CARD SOUND BRIDGE, which stretches between the mainland and the northernmost of the group of coral islands extending 140 miles into the sea and forming a dividing line between the Atlantic Ocean and the Gulf of Mexico.
The largest, Key Largo, has the usual southern Florida palmetto and scrub flatwoods but south of it the vegetation is increasingly tropical. The islands are narrow and level, and the vast blue expanse of the sea sweeps to the horizon. Tropical water birds are innumerable. Palms, gumbo-limbo, and golden fig and lime trees grow from coral crevices so glaringly white that it is painful to look at them without tinted glasses. The keys are divided into two groups, the Upper and the Lower. North of Bahia Honda they are coral reefs; south of it they are oolitic.
It is difficult to determine the total area of the islands, some of which are very irregular in shape. The total land area of all probably does not exceed 60 square miles; most of them do not rise more than 6 feet above sea level.
The most important products of the keys are limes, the juiciest and largest grown in Florida. The main occupations of the people have always been fishing, sponging, and farming.
At 44 miles is SMITTY'S HOUSEBOAT, moored near the center of Card Sound Bridge, and at 44.7 miles is PELICANS ROOST at the end of the bridge (boats and tackle available at both places).
KEY LARGO (Spanish, long), the northernmost island (320 population), is about 30 miles long and at most 1 .5 miles wide. Its elevation is greater than that of the other islands in the chain, and it has perhaps the most fertile soil.
At 49.6 miles is the junction with an unpaved road. Left on this road to the northern shore, where is the ANGLERS' CLUB CAMP, 5.8 miles, owned by a wealthy group. Offshore here is a group of three large and several small islands. These are not, however, the northernmost of the keys; the chain extends north along the coast for 50 miles.
Among the islands immediately north of Key Largo of which Old Rhodes, Elliott, and Sand Keys are the largest the point of chief interest is BLACK CAESAR'S ROCK (accessible only by boat), a tiny island between Old Rhodes and Elliott Islands.
This place was the stronghold and hiding place of Black Caesar, the gigantic chief of an African tribe, who had been captured by a slave trader; during a hurricane off the Florida coast Black Caesar, with a number of others, escaped and reached shore safely. He and his followers built a boat of the wreckage they found and became pirates. His tremendous strength and natural ferocity made him feared along the entire coast. Needing a place to lie in wait for prey and to make repairs on his boat, Black Caesar chose this island among the keys as his stronghold.
To facilitate the removal of the barnacles from the bottom of his ship, Black Caesar had a large iron ring fastened in the coral rock off the western shore of the island. A block-and-fall was rigged to the masthead, the rope being reeved through another block hooked to the ring; the crew hauled on the rope until the vessel lay on her side. After one side had been scraped, the other was treated in the same manner. It is said that Black Caesar also used this method to screen his boat from view when there were pursuers, and to lie in wait for possible victims. The boat would be canted enough to hide the mast in the tree tops. When danger was past or when prey was near enough to be pounced upon, a slackening of the line would soon right the boat to an even keel.
When in time Blackbeard joined Black Caesar, the two became the terror of the region. Blackbeard added to his ferocious appearance by wearing a long black beard braided into many tails, which he looped over his ears. There is little doubt that when they boarded a vessel they seemed like devils from "a hell of their own," as Blackbeard himself boasted. Both pirates met violent deaths while plying their trade.
At this junction the appearance of the key begins to change. Here rolling hammock land contains tall growths of feathery-leaved wild tamarind, gumbo-limbo conspicuous by reason of its red bark, madeira, dogwood, crabwood, great bird fig, and sapodilla. Wild grapevines cover entire trees, often hiding the identity of the support. Day glories and moonvines are everywhere, and the shoulders of the highway are colored with wild flowers. There are few houses along the road, but trails lead through thick hammocks to the ocean and to farms and groves.
The rolling hammock land is soon left behind, and lime groves line the highway. Unkempt vegetation, left for windbreaks, makes it difficult for persons accustomed to the methodically planted citrus groves to recognize the groves as such. Here, on the upper keys, lime trees grow in leafmold and thin soil; farther south where dirt becomes scarce the trees seem to flourish equally well in rock crevices.
At 56.8 miles are MABLE'S PLAGE and KEY INN (lodging and meals).
KEY LARGO STATION, 59.1 miles (50 estimated population), was formerly a station on the Florida East Coast Ry., which connected Key West with the mainland. This once-celebrated oversea section was built in 1911, the first train running over the route January 22, 1912. At Key West passenger cars were shunted on tracks of seagoing ferryboats, which carried them to Havana, 90 miles away; thus travelers could step into a Pullman in New York and step out of it in Cuba. Uninterrupted service was maintained from 1912 until September 2, 1935, when the great hurricane destroyed more than 40 miles of track. The F.E.C. Ry. decided against rebuilding the damaged tracks and roadbed, and discontinued service below Homestead, on the mainland. The dismantling of the line is now complete, the right-of-way having been acquired by the Florida State Road Dept. for this highway. The ferry service to Cuba is now carried on through Fort Lauderdale.
There is a large LIME PACKING HOUSE near the old station.
At 61.1 miles is LARGO GARDEN, a refreshment stand built in a beautiful grove having many different kinds of plants. Coral boulders mark the shoulders of the road here.
NEWPORT, 63.8 miles, is a small settlement of Negroes employed in nearby groves.
ROCK HARBOR, 66 miles (12’ altitude, 131 estimated population), is a tiny village with a 30-foot OBSERVATION TOWER over its post office. The tower is a square stucco structure anchored by cables to bedrock; from its railed upper platform is a view of the Atlantic, Florida Bay, and the Gulf. Eastward is the ocean shore, where are racks for fish nets. All around the tiny settlement are extensive lime groves that bear through most of the year; to the west is a mango grove.
At 66.8 miles is MAG'S PLACE, where cabins, sea foods, gasoline, and boats are available. Sportsmen starting out to catch bonefish often buy supplies here.
TAVERNIER, 73.1 miles (10’ altitude, 91 estimated population), takes its name from a stream that winds past the lower end of Key Largo. The French pronunciation of the word has been lost, the natives pronouncing it as though it rhymed with beer.
This waterway is supposed to have been a favorite hiding place for Tavernier, lieutenant of Jean La Fitte, the pirate who was, in 1814, promised 30,000 pounds sterling and a commission in the Royal Navy if he would assist the British operations against New Orleans. Instead La Fitte offered his information and aid to the Americans, whom he and his men served in the Battle of New Orleans. After he was pardoned by President Madison, La Fitte resumed his piracy near the present site of Galveston. When a naval expedition was sent against him for attacking American property, he sailed away. Neither his destination nor his fate is known.
Brought into existence as the southernmost railway stop on Key Largo, Tavernier was just a railroad station until O. M. Woods acquired holdings during the boom days, built a lumber shed, a moving-picture theater and other facilities. Few of the inhabitants live along the highway, but roads lead to homes along the shores.
At Tavernier are some of the stormproof houses built along the keys by the American Red Cross and the F.E.R.A. Constructed entirely of reinforced concrete, these homes are anchored to bedrock; the massive effect is emphasized by heavy wooden storm shutters and the huge slabs of masonry that form the roofs.
At 73.7 miles is a CAMP on Tavernier Creek, where boats are available for fishing in the ocean or the bay.
At 73.8 miles is the northern end of PLANTATION KEY, named for pineapple and banana plantations that flourished in the past. This island was first settled by Bahamans who migrated from Key Vaca and Indian Key in search of farm land; from the 1870's until shortly after the beginning of the present century, it was a very prosperous area. From the road it looks almost uninhabited, but in reality there are many homes, hidden behind the hammocks.
Palms on the lower part of the key show many evidences of the 1935 hurricane, the center of which cut a devastated path at this point.
At 78.6 miles is SNAKE GREEK, scene of one of the major washouts of the '35 hurricane. The RAILROAD TRESTLE was temporarily rebuilt after the storm for the removal of stranded railroad cars.
WINDLEY ISLAND, 78.9 miles, was named for an old settler. At the foot of the bridge is the CROOKED DOOR, a camp with boats for hire and bait for sale. Much fine-grained Windley Island coral rock has been used for interior trim in building construction.
A broad expanse of low prairie was the SITE OF THE WORLD WAR VETERANS CAMP NUMBER ONE, one of the three camps destroyed by the 1935 hurricane with many fatalities. A few yards down the road are rock quarries, from which derricks lift huge blocks of coral limestone. The rock has a texture suitable for limited use in sculpture; when treated, it can be used for tiles.
Keys resident Ernest Hemingway said of the 1935 hurricane:
"...wealthy people, yachtsmen, fishermen such as President Hoover and Presidents Roosevelt, do not come to the Florida Keys in hurricane months.... There is a known danger to property. But veterans, especially the bonus-marching variety of veterans, are not property. They are only human beings; unsuccessful human beings, and all they have to lose is their lives. They are doing coolie labor for a top wage of $45 a month and they have been put down on the Florida Keys where they can't make trouble. It is hurricane months, sure, but if anything comes up, you can always evacuate them, can't you?.....It is not necessary to go into the deaths of the civilians and their families since they were on the Keys of their own free will; They made their living there, had property and knew the hazards involved. But the veterans had been sent there; they had no opportunity to leave, nor any protection against hurricanes; and they never had a chance for their lives. Who sent nearly a thousand war veterans, many of them husky, hard-working and simply out of luck, but many of them close to the border of pathological cases, to live in frame shacks on the Florida Keys in hurricane months?"
At 80.1 miles is WHALE HARBOR. Across Whale Harbor extended another railway fill similar to that at Snake Creek, where today bent, twisted rails, swept 50 yards from their bed, are testimony to the hurricane's violence.
UPPER MATECUMBE KEY (Spanish, bent bushes; pron. matty-cum'-bee), 81.6 miles, is famous among fishermen. On the ocean front, tabbed without much originality by the sun-baked natives as "Millionaire's Row," are many attractive homes and private fishing lodges.
ISLAMORADA (Spanish, purple isle; pron. i-la-morahr-do), 82.5 miles (10’ altitude, 180 estimated population), stands in the interior of the key, with flat, scrub palm country surrounding it. It was through the efforts of Henry MILES Flagler that the Matecumbe Keys became popular among sportsmen; this place was established by him as a station for the convenience of fishermen. A group of boatmen and skilled guides live near the former station.
At 84.5 miles is a ferry slip (gasoline, refreshments, and boats available).
Left from the extreme southern shore of Upper Matecumbe is TEA TABLE KEY, 1 miles (accessible only by boat), so named because of its flat terrain. Between 1839 and 1840 it was used as one of several bases for naval vessels engaged in Seminole War operations.
Southwest of Tea Table Key and L. of the bridge is INDIAN KEY, 2 miles. It is accessible only by water, but can be approached from all sides. This feature, combined with its fertile acreage, led to its use as a trading post from the time the first Spaniards bartered with the Indians.
The island, containing only 12 acres, was first settled by Capt. Jacob Houseman, of Staten Island, New York, as a base for wreckers. In 1838 Dr. Henry Perrine, a botanist of note, landed here with his family to experiment with the growing of tropical plants imported from Yucatan. On the morning of August 7, 1 840, the settlement was attacked by 200 Indians; Dr. Perrine and 12 others were killed. The Perrine family, whom the doctor had hidden in a turtle pen beneath the pier, and several others were finally rescued by a Government cutter. Today nothing remains of the settlement except a brick cistern and the gravestone of Captain Houseman.
When the Indian Key massacre was reported, Government troops were sent to quell the uprising. With the help of an escaped Negress who had been held in slavery by the Indians, the entire band of Galoosas with the exception of a few braves who were out hunting, was captured and sent to prison. Fearing revenge for having led the soldiers into the Everglades on the trail of the killers, the former Negro slave left her home and moved to Key West, where she lived to be more than 100 years old.
The inhabitants of the Matecumbe Keys have many superstitious beliefs. One is that sheepshead, a fish with large strong teeth, after feeding on barnacles of copper-sheathed wrecks, become poisonous, and that persons eating such fish die soon afterward.
In the Bay of Florida, 2 miles west of the southern tip of Upper Matecumbe, is LIGNUM VITAE KEY, on which grows lignum vitae, a very heavy hardwood found nowhere else on the Florida Keys.
LOWER MATECUMBE, 87.9 miles, is the site of two of the three World War veterans camps that were swept away by storm in 1935.
At 92.3 miles, conspicuously marked at the lower end of this island, is the FERRY SLIP, where automobiles trundle on ferries for the 14-mile crossing to Grassy Key. On these boats excellent meals are served, with turtle steak a favorite dish. The ferries follow a protected waterway, well inside the line of keys, and are never out of sight of the railway viaduct.
The name of GRASSY KEY, 105 miles, southern terminus of the ferry, is said to have been derived from an old settler, not from the nature of its grassy growth. The island is two and a half miles long.
CRAWL KEYS, 107.5 miles, was named for the sponge and turtle pens, called crawls by the native fishermen. The word is believed to be a corruption of "corral" (stock pen).
Right from Crawl Keys is BAMBOO KEY, 1 in., a small irregularly shaped island that is supposed to have fewer mosquitoes than the other keys. This has been attributed to the presence of a parasitic plant, Cuscuta umbalata, that thrives on the island. Actually, however, the properties of this odoriferous plant as a mosquito eradicator have not been proved.
At 109.5 miles is the junction with an unpaved road. Left on this road to a large emergency landing field, 1 miles, on land near the ocean shore.
[image: ]KEY VACA (Spanish, cow), 110.4 miles, is thought to have been so named because of the cattle that roamed on it at one time.
At 117 miles on Key Vaca is the one-story SOMBRERO LODGE, a well-appointed hotel with five large wings.
The keys here were, in the middle of the last century, the scene of an unusual industry. The beche de mer, a sea-slug, was salted down for export to the Orient, where it is considered a delicacy.
MARATHON, 118 miles (7’ altitude), is the only settlement of any consequence on this key. A clubhouse owned by Miami sportsmen is recognized by its 30,000-gallon water tank.
The road leading to the ferry landing is well marked.
South of Key Vaca is BOOT KEY HARBOR, graveyard of a number of boats used in constructing the railway, and sunk in these waters when their usefulness ended. In the collection of old craft is virtually every kind from side-wheeler to barge.
Visible from the ferry is what was once the longest railway bridge in the world crossing ocean waters, PIGEON KEY VIADUCT, extending 7.6 miles between tiny Pigeon Key and Duck Key.<INSERT Pigeon Key FOOTNOTE HERE>
South of here the geology of the archipelago changes. From this point to Dry Tortugas all islands are of white oolite with a tangle of mangroves whose roots stabilize old islands and build new ones, simply by retaining the mud washed in by tides. These lower keys have a very scant covering of topsoil, and for that reason have not yet attracted farmers. It has been found, however, that lime trees will grow in the crevices of the limestone; tomatoes, okra, melons, and similar produce grow in the few inches of topsoil, accumulated bit by bit as the mangrove and buttonwood deposit their rich mold. Papayas grow wild here, bearing a small, sweet fruit.
NO NAME KEY, 132.1 miles, is the western terminus of the ferry. The scenery on No Name Key, with pines and palmettos, suggests certain sections of northern Florida, but sapodilla trees are evidence of the subtropical climate.
At 132.2 miles is NO NAME LODGE, a fishing resort.
BIG PINE KEY, 135 miles, contains a grove of comparatively large Cuban pines at the place where topsoil is thickest. Cranes and herons are numerous.
At 136.2 miles is the junction with a hard-surfaced road. Left on this road to BIG PINE INN, 7 miles, a quiet hotel with chicken dinners, rooms, and fishing boats.
BIG TORCH KEY, 137.6 miles, was so named because of the quantity of torchwood on the island. This wood is so resinous that a torch made of it will burn twice as long as does one of pine.
At 139.6 miles is MIDDLE TORCH KEY. Here, in addition to torchwood, grows the soapberry tree. For years natives have used the soapberry for catching fish by hand. The seeds are crushed into a gelatinous mass in calm water, when they release a toxic substance that stupifies fish swimming near it. While the substance can be used for cleansing, it is not commonly utilized for that purpose.
RAMROD KEY, 139.9 miles, has a post office with a picturesque old muzzle-loading cannon.
SUMMERLAND KEY, 142.1 miles, has excellent farm land. Extensive lime groves are cultivated here and many tropical fruits are raised for northern markets.
At CUDJOE (contraction of Cousin Joe) KEY, 144.3 miles, pigeons are often seen flying over the road or feasting on the berries of the poisonwood tree. When bruised, the tree exudes a gum that blackens the trunk. It is one of the first to grow on cut-over and burnt hammock land.
SUGAR LOAF SOUND, off SUGAR LOAF KEY, 147.7 miles, is the site of successful sponge-culture experiments. Here sponges are grown from cuttings and cultivated. The name of the key is derived from the sugar-loaf pineapple formerly cultivated on its soil.
PIRATE'S COVE FISHING CAMP, 149.1 miles, is one of the best known resorts on the lower keys. During the 1935 hurricane many of its buildings were demolished; the place has been rebuilt on a smaller scale with more secure construction.
SADDLEBUNCH KEY, 155.4 miles, is an island attractive because of Gandolphe Creek, where mangroves are reflected in clear water. Mangrove and buttonwood line the road, with flat expanses beyond them.
TINY BIRD KEY, 160.2 miles, is little more than a mangrove swamp, named for the sooty terns that abound under protection of the National Park Service. 
GEIGER KEY, 160.6 miles, is another of the small islands named for an early settler.
On BOCA CHIGA KEY (Spanish, little mouth), 162.5 miles, the smooth recently built highway is at times less than 75 feet from the sea.
At 165.7 miles is BOCA CHIC A FISHING GAMP.
At 167.4 miles is a BOTANICAL GARDEN with many kinds of tropical plants.
Key West
At 168.6 miles the highway forks, providing two routes leading into KEY WEST, 170.2 miles (6’ altitude, 12,831 population).
Key West, seat of Monroe County, and the southernmost city of the United States, covers an entire subtropical coral island, one mile wide and half a mile long. Coco-palms flourish, and Spanish limes, dates, pomegranates, and sapodillas grow wild. The place was called Cayo Hueso (bone key) by Spanish explorers as early as the 16th century because many human bones were found here.
The island was granted, in 1815, by Ferdinand VII to Don Juan Pablo Salas as a reward for military service. It was not settled until 1822, when it became a naval base of the United States.
About half the inhabitants are descendants of white people of British birth who came here from Virginia, New England, and the West Indies; about one-quarter are descendants of Cubans and Spaniards; and roughly one-sixth are Negroes who have lived or whose parents lived in Bahama or the West Indies. The population is bilingual, speaking both Spanish and English.
The earliest businessmen of the island were pirates; the first legal business to develop was wreck salvaging. So many ships were wrecked on the nearby reefs and so rich were the cargoes that, in 1 846, a time of unusually severe storms, $1,600,000 worth of shipwrecked property was brought in. The establishment of the lighthouses gradually ruined this source of income. Some return of prosperity came during the Civil War when naval activity increased. After the beginning of the Cuban revolution in 1868 Cubans, many of them cigar makers, came to Key West; in 1874 a modern cigar factory was established, becoming the nucleus of an industry that gave the city its next wave of prosperity. Sponge fishing also became important. In time labor troubles in the cigar industry increased, and by 1906 the business began to move away to Gulf coast cities. In the meantime the place had begun to lose its importance as a supply station for coal-burning ships. The opening of the Florida East Coast Ry. in 1912 gave another economic reprieve, but the effect was only temporary as practically all the cigar factories had left and the sponge-fishing industry had declined. Another blow came in 1925 when the Federal Government reduced the size of the army base; in 1932 the naval base became inactive and the Coast Guard headquarters was transferred to St. Petersburg. The city is the locale of Ernest Hemingway's novel, "To Have and Have Not."
In 1934 the Governor of the State placed the affairs of the county in the hands of the F.E.R.A., which began the rehabilitation of the city by developing it as a winter resort. The whole place was cleaned up; streets and promenades were landscaped, modern facilities were installed, new buildings were erected, and charming old ones were repaired. A yacht basin and other tourist attractions were developed. During the first resort season more than 35,000 visitors arrived, about 3,000 remaining throughout the winter.
The SPONGE DOCK, foot of Grinnell St., is one of the busiest spots on the island. The auction here is worth seeing.
In the TURTLE CRAWLS, north end of Margaret St., are often seen specimens hundreds of years old and weighing several hundred pounds. Boats that come to the adjacent dock frequently bring in large jewfish, sharks, and the like. Near the crawls are a canning plant and a turtle-soup factory. The butchering takes place shortly after noon nearly every day.
In the OPEN-AIR AQUARIUM, foot of Whitehead St., are many brilliantly colored tropical fishes.
FORT TAYLOR, entered from Angela St., has played an important part in the history of the city since its foundations were laid in 1845.<INSERT ENDNOTE HERE>
The ERNEST HEMINGWAY RESIDENCE (private), corner of Olivia and Whitehead Streets, was built shortly after the Civil War.
From KEY WEST LIGHTHOUSE (open dawn to sunset), corner of Whitehead and Division Streets, is an exceptional view of this and nearby islands. Aviaries on the grounds hold hundreds of tropical birds.
The BAHAMA HOUSES stand close together, the Bartlum residence on Eaton Street and the Roberts home on Williams Street. The former was first built on Green Turtle Key, Bahama Islands, by Capt. Joe Bartlum in the early part of the 19th century; when the family in the early thirties decided to move here, the house was taken apart, loaded aboard a schooner, and rebuilt on its present site. The Roberts place was likewise brought from the Bahamas. These houses are constructed entirely of white pine and, though unpretentious, have a simple dignity and an air of comfort. They differ from most Key West buildings in having low ceilings, but are like them in having delicate balustrades on the porches and large shuttered openings.
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Length (Miles)



Length of Florida Keys Bridges

Length (miles)	Cow Key Channel	Boca Chica Channel	Rockland Channel	Shark Channel	Saddle Bunch #5	Saddle Bunch #4	Saddle Bunch #3	Saddle Bunch #2	Lower Sugarloaf Channel	Harris Channel	Harris Gap Channel	North Harris Channel	Park Channel	Bow Channel	Kemp's Channel	Nile's Channel	Torch Ramrod Channel	Torch Key Channel	South Pine Channel	North Pine Channel	Spanish Harbor Channel	Bahia Honda Bridge	Old Bahia Honda Channel	Missouri-Ohio Channel	Little Duck-Missouri Channel	Seven Mile Bridge	Vaca Cut	Tom's Harbor #4	Tom's Harbor Cut	Long Key Channel	Channel #5	Channel #2	Lignumvitae Channel	Indian Key Channel	Tea Table Channel	Tea Table Relief	Whale Harbor Channel	Snake Creek Bridge	Tavernier Creek	Marvin D. Adams	6.9000000000000006E-2	0.501	0.246	0.39200000000000002	0.16500000000000001	0.16700000000000001	0.14099999999999999	0.12	0.24299999999999999	8.5000000000000006E-2	0.29099999999999998	8.3000000000000004E-2	0.155	0.28299999999999997	0.21099999999999999	0.86499999999999999	0.125	0.157	0.17599999999999999	0.14099999999999999	0.66100000000000003	1.272	0.21	0.28000000000000003	0.17199999999999999	6.7930000000000001	0.08	0.28799999999999998	0.26200000000000001	2.306	0.93500000000000005	0.35799999999999998	0.17199999999999999	0.38700000000000001	0.14099999999999999	5.2999999999999999E-2	0.122	0.161	0.06	2.4E-2	
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